
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

April 6
th

 2011 

2:00 p.m. 
 

   1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

   

   2-REPORTS 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB O  Minutes of February 23

rd
, 2011, Budget Work Session – Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

TAB P  Minutes of March 9
th

, 2011 Budget Work Session – Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

TAB Q  Minutes of March 16
th

, 2011Regular Meeting – Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

TAB R  Authorize Execution of Agreement with the VA Dept of Health for FY 11 Appropriations – Renee  

Hoover, Finance Director 

TAB S  FY11 Library Supplement for Federal Reimbursement Funding – Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

TAB T  Approval of Payment to the James River Water Authority for Legal Services – Renee Hoover, Finance  

Director 

TAB U  Ag/Forestal District Renewal/AFD 01-002 Adams Creek (Bruce Carter) – Matt Weaver, Planner 

 

    5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

TAB V  Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

 

   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

None 

     

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

  None 

 

   8-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB W  Proclamation/Proclaiming April 2011 Celebrating Children’s Month – E. Nicole Lloyd Shipp, Social  

Work Supervisor 

TAB XYZ Resolution/National Crime Victims’ Rights Week – Sherri Stader, Director, Victim/Witness Assistance  

Program 

TAB A  Proclamation/Proclaiming April 10-16, 2011 National Telecommunicators Week – Tammy Johnson,  

Director of Communications 

TAB B  Approval of Audit Services Contract – Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

TAB C  Review and Approval of Fork Union Firehouse Schematic Design – John Robins, Director of Public  

Works and Donald Booth, DLG, Architects 

TAB D  Appointment/Economic Development Commission (EDC) – Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of  

Supervisors 

 

  9-OLD BUSINESS 

   

10-NEW BUSINESS 

 

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

 12-CLOSED MEETING 

  None Scheduled 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

 

13-RECESS 

 

7:00 p.m.  
 

14-RECONVENE 

 

TAB E 15-PRESENTATION OF PROPOSED FY 2012 – 2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

 

16-PUBLIC HEARING ON FY 2012 - 2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 Public Comments 

 

 17-PRESENTATION OF PROPOSED FY 2012 REAL ESTATE TAX RATE INCREASE 

Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

 

18-PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED FY 2012 REAL ESTATE TAX RATE INCREASE 

 Public Comments 

 

 19-PRESENTATION OF PROPOSED FY 2012 PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX INCREASE 

Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

 

20-PUBLIC HEARING ON FY 2012 PROPOSED PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX INCREASE 

 Public Comments 

 

21-PRESENTATION OF PROPOSED FY 2012 PERSONAL PROPERTY ADMINISTRATIVE FEE   

      INCREASE 
Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

 

22-PUBLIC HEARING ON FY 2012 PROPOSED PROPERTY ADMINISTRATIVE FEE INCREASE 

 Public Comments 

 

23-PRESENTATION OF PROPOSED FY 2012 COUNTY BUDGET 

Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

 

24-PUBLIC HEARING ON FY 2012 PROPOSED COUNTY BUDGET 

 Public Comments 

 

 25-COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

 

 26-ADJOURN 

 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

 

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

 

 

 

********** 

ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 

bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  

The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  

       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 















 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, March 16
th

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  APRIL 6
th

,  2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, March 16
th

, 2011 

Page 1 

 

 1 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

March 16th, 2011 

6:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

Chris S. Fairchild 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Fred Payne, County Attorney 

    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

Darren K. Coffey, Planning Director 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Barbara Gibbons, Chairwoman 

       Bertha Armstrong, Vice-Chair 

       Tom Muir 

       Brian Phillips 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Doug Johnson 

    Camilla Washington 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch and Ms. Gibbons called the joint work session meeting of March 16th, 2011 to order 

at 6:00 p.m. in the Circuit Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the 

Pledge of Allegiance was recited, after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence and 

remembrance of the deputies that were killed in Buchanan County on Sunday, March 13th, 2011. 

 

SCHOOL BOARD BUDGET PRESENTATION 

Chairwoman Gibbons reviewed with the Board the reasons the proposed FY12 budget for the schools 

and introduced Ms. Gena Keller, School Superintendent, to present an overview of the FY12 budget. 

 

Ms. Keller was joined by Mr. Ed Breslauer, Director of Finance, to present to the Board the process 

that was used for the FY12 budget, along with the desires and future goals for the Fluvanna County 

Schools.  

 

The Board discussed with the School Board their requests.  Mr. Kenney publicly commended and 

thanked Mr. Muir and Mr. Phillips for their leadership.   

 

At the end of the School Board’s budget presentation, Chairwoman Gibbons adjourned their meeting. 

 

RECESS 

The Board recessed at 6:43 p.m. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, March 16
th

, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 2 

RECONVENE 

The Board reconvened at 7:00 p.m. 
 

REPORTS 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 Invitation for Habitat for Humanity – Dedication sponsored by Dominion Power, March 21, 

2011, at 2 p.m., on High Mountain Lane. 

 Dooms/Bremo Transmission Line – Dominion Power is holding a number of public 

information seminars in reference to upgrading the old transmission line that runs 45 miles 

from Augusta County to Bremo Station in Fluvanna. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

The following citizen addressed the Board: 

 Jacques Ruch, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in reference to the school budget and 

necessary spending. 

 Perry Johnson, Fork Union District, President of Fluvanna Education – addressed the board 

in support of fully funding the schools’ proposed budget. 

 Scott Carpenter, Fire Chief Lake, Monticello Rescue Squad – addressed the Board on behalf 

of the Fluvanna County Fire and Rescue Association in regarding the 911 EMS Response 

Times presentation that is on the agenda for this evening.   

 Alden Bigelow, Rivanna District – addressed the Board opposing charging for EMS services. 

 Gary Koontz, Rivanna District – thanked the Board for their service, and supports them 

100% to do the best for this County. 

 Minor Eager, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in reference to County services, and 

supports cuts. 

 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in reference to the County debt level.  

 Jerry Patchen, Palmyra District – shared with the Board the recommendations of the 

Fluvanna Taxpayers Association in reference to taxes. 

 Tom Payne, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of the schools’ proposed 

budget and stated the only tax source we have is the Fluvanna Residents. 

 Norma Hutner, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in support of no new taxes. 

 Sam Richardson, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in reference to making the correct 

choice. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District – addressed the Board in reference to the views of the 

Fluvanna Taxpayers Association. 

 Randy Ralston, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in reference to being extremely 

frugal with future expenditures. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

 MOTION: 

  Mr. Kenney moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 

 Minutes of February 9th, 2011 

 Minutes of March 2nd , 2011 

 5 Year Financial Forecast Invoice 

Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, March 16
th

, 2011 

Page 3 

 

 3 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

None 

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

Plan to Reduce 911 EMS Response Times 

Mr. Lyle Plitt presented to the Board his thoughts on how to reduce emergency response times. 

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Proclamation/Fluvanna Garden Club Month 85th Anniversary 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, read the proclamation for this item. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to approve the proclamation [attached hereto] recognizes the 

continuing importance of the volunteer hours the members of the Fluvanna Garden 

Club provide, to enhance the viability of the County.  As we celebrate their 85th 

birthday, we the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors, proclaim the month of April, 

2011 at Fluvanna Garden Club Month.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, 

with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Fairchild, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   

NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

Formation of Redistricting Committee 

Mr. Darren K. Coffey, Planning Director, addressed the Board regarding this request and reviewed 

the requirements for redistricting in preparation for the upcoming elections. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors form a 

Redistricting Committee to guide the County in its decennial redistricting process.  

The composition of this committee shall consist of two Board members – Don 

Weaver and Mozell Booker.  The scope of the committee shall be limited to those 

issues as outlined in the attached redistricting memorandum, and the duration of the 

committee shall be until submittal is made to the Department of Justice in May or 

June 2011.  Mr. Fairchild seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Gooch, Weaver, Fairchild, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None.    

 

OLD BUSINESS 

FY 12 Budget Discussion, Recommendation and Authorization to Advertise 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reviewed with the Board what has been done up to this point 

for the FY12 Budget.  Ms. Renee Hoover, Finance Director, reviewed with the Board options 

increasing revenue fees along with cuts in expenditures.  Mr. Mel Sheridan, Commissioner of the 

Revenue, addressed the Board in reference to Personal Property Values.  Extensive discussions 

ensued among the Board of Supervisors. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, March 16
th

, 2011 

Page 4 

 

 4 

RECESS 

The Board recessed at 10:04 p.m. 

 

RECONVENE 

The Board reconvened at 10:43 p.m. 
 

MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to advertise the Real Estate Tax Rate at $.61 and the Personal 

Property Rate at $4.05.  Ms. Booker seconded.  The motion failed, with a vote of 3-3.  

AYES:  Gooch, Chesser and Booker.   NAYS:  Weaver, Kenney and Fairchild.  

ABSENT:  None.    

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to advertise the Real Estate Tax Rate at $.55 and the Personal 

Property Rate at $4.05.  Mr. Weaver seconded for discussion.   

 

EXTEND MEETING  
MOTION:  

Mr. Weaver moved to extend the Board of Supervisors meeting to 12:00  

midnight. Mr. Kenney seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: 

Booker, Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild. NAYS: None.  

 

The board continued discussion with the motion on the floor to advertise the Real Estate Tax Rate 

at $.55 and the Personal Property Rate at $4.05.  

The motion failed, with a vote of 2-4.  AYES:  Kenney and Weaver.  NAYS:  Gooch, 

Fairchild, Chesser and Booker.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Fairchild moved to advertise the Real Estate Tax Rate at $.56 and the Personal 

Property Rate at $4.15.  Ms. Booker seconded.  The motion failed, with a vote of 2-4.  

AYES:  Fairchild and Booker.   NAYS:  Weaver, Kenney, Gooch and Chesser.  

ABSENT:  None.    

 

Further discussion ensued; Mr. Kenney requested the Board take a break. 

 

RECESS 

The Board recessed at 11:20 p.m. 

 

RECONVENE 

The Board reconvened at 11:30 p.m. 

 

MOTION:  

Mr. Chesser moved to advertise the Real Estate Tax Rate at $.57 and the Personal 

Property Rate at $4.15.  Ms. Booker seconded.  The motion passed, with a roll call 

vote of 4-2.  AYES:  Chesser, Fairchild, Gooch and Booker.   NAYS:  Weaver and 

Kenney.  ABSENT:  None.    



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, March 16
th

, 2011 

Page 5 

 

 5 

MOTION:  

Mr. Chesser moved to amend license fee ordinance to increase motorcycles to 

$18.00 and other motor vehicles to $33.00.  Ms. Booker seconded.  The motion 

passed, with a roll call vote of 4-2.  AYES:  Chesser, Fairchild, Gooch and Booker.   

NAYS:  Weaver and Kenney.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

NEW BUSINESS 

None 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Leonard Bozza, President of Lake Monticello Fire and Rescue and a member of Fluvanna 

EMS Committee – addressed the Board, in reference to rescue recovery service. 

 Kent Loving, Columbia District – addressed the Board, in reference to Personal Property Tax 

and Business Personal Property assessment. 

 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board, in reference to the tax rate. 

 Tom Payne, Palmyra District – addressed the Board, in reference to Economic Development. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public comments. 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 11:48 p.m., Mr. Kenney moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, March 16th, 

2011.  Mr. Fairchild seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver and Fairchild.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: 

None     

 

 

 

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, March 16
th

, 2011 

Page 6 

 

 6 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY 
 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

WHEREAS, the Fluvanna Garden Club (FGC) is celebrating the 85th Anniversary of its 
formation, let it be known that the County of Fluvanna celebrates with them; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FGC was established in 1926, by a small group of Fluvanna women, 
concerned with improving the physical and saving the environmental beauty of the 
county; and 
 
WHEREAS, members of the FGC met in both public and private spaces throughout the 
County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the first public project was an attempt to preserve the „old covered bridge‟ 
downstream of the current Rte 15 bridge; and 
 
WHEREAS, during the course of the clubs history, over 4,000 trees have been planted 
to enhance public spaces; and every year, since the club‟s inception, a tree is planted in 
celebration of “Arbor Day”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FGC formed the first public awareness program for beautifying public 
highways, by working with Virginia Department of Highways to ban littering and the use 
of billboards, and encourage property owners to remove trash and abandoned vehicles 
from public view; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FGC took on, as a public service, the ongoing challenge of landscaping 
and maintaining the triangle at Dixie; and 
 
WHEREAS, FGC has taken on other noteworthy projects, including beautifying filling 
stations, the “Model Mile” (of which the stone makers are still visible from Rte 15), 
beautifying the Dixie War memorial, establishing the first Bird Sanctuary in the County, 
raising funds for and landscaping the elementary, middle and high schools, landscaping 
the war memorial at Court House Square, donating books to the public library on  
gardening issues, participating with “Keep Virginia Beautiful” campaign, Virginia Land 
Trust, Nature Conservancy, Virginia Barrier Island project, and planting in the circle in 
the County Center; and 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, March 16
th

, 2011 

Page 7 

 

 7 

 
WHEREAS, continuing efforts include increasing public awareness of the importance of 
using only local vegetation as landscaping materials; and 
 
WHEREAS, FGC participated with; the Girl Scouts, Boy Scouts, Junior Garden Clubs, 
youth nature and science clubs at the local elementary and middle schools; 
encouraging our elementary school to participate in the “Smokey the Bear” and 
“Woodsy Owl” poster and awareness campaigns; and (during the War years) helped 
neighbors plant and maintain victory gardens in order to sustain many households 
during that time; and 
 
WHEREAS the FGC continues to support and celebrate local businesses by purchasing 
products and services, and rewards local businesses with Floral arrangements during 
Virginia Garden Week; and 
 
WHEREAS, FGC continues to discourage the State of Virginia from using chemical 
sprays as a means to kill vegetation on any public space; and 
 
WHEREAS, FGC raised money to help fund the Tuberculosis, Cancer, and Pediatric 
units at UVA and Martha Jefferson, and provides funds to inform Virginians about public 
health threats; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FGC provides an annual “Dogwood Award” to local businesses or 
communities, in recognition of beautification efforts of their properties, and continues to 
provide public service and awareness, through participation with nursing homes, 
schools, educational demonstrations, landscaping Habitat for Humanity homes, as well 
as maintaining an information booth at “Old Farm Day” and providing decorations for 
“Christmas in the Village” annually;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, LET IT BE KNOWN, the County of Fluvanna recognizes the 
continuing importance of the volunteer hours the members of the Fluvanna Garden Club 
provide to enhance the viability of the County.  As we celebrate their 85th birthday, we 
THE FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, proclaim the month of April, 
2011 as “FLUVANNA GARDEN CLUB MONTH”. 
 

Signed and sealed this 16th day of March, 2011. 
 
   
 John Y. Gooch 
 Chair, County of Fluvanna Board of Supervisors 

 









MOTION: I move the BOS aprove a budget supplement to the FY11 Library budget 
in the amount of $3465.36 to reflect E-rate federal reimbursement funding.  The 
following general ledger lines would increase, 3-100-033010-0080 and 4-100-073100-
5230. 
 
 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  March 22, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: FY11 Library Supplement for federal reimbursement 
 
RECOMMENDATION: approval 
 
TIMING: Routine 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: General Fund budget will increase by $3465.36 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: none 
 
DISCUSSION: The Fluvanna County Public Library applied for and received E-
Rate Federal Funding this year.  The Schools and Libraries Program of the Universal 
Service Fund makes discounts available to eligible schools and libraries for 
telecommunication services, Internet access, and internal connections. The program is 
intended to ensure that schools and libraries have access to affordable 
telecommunications and information services.  The discounts are based on available 
funding and the local school lunch program. 
 
Staff: Crystal Besecker 
 
Copy: Cynthia Hoffman, Library Director 
 
Attachments:       
 
 
For County Administrator’s Use Only: 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
County Administrator’s Signature 









MOTION:  I move to renew the Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District for an additional ten 

year period containing a total of 555.69 acres. 
 

AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS       April 6, 2011 

 

SUBJECT:  Review and renewal of the Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District. 

 

TIMING:  The Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District (AFD) expires on May 16, 2011 

without further Board of Supervisor’s action to either review or renew the district.    

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: This action would renew the AFD for an additional 10 year period to 

expire on May 16, 2021. 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  In 2001, the Board of Supervisors approved the Adams Creek 

Agricultural/Forestal District. The previous adoption and implementation of the 

Agricultural/Forestal District sections of the state code was intended to further the County’s goal 

of rural preservation, and to protect participants from the potential for encroaching development 

and escalating property taxes. 

 

There are nine (9) parcels that currently encompass the Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal 

District.  A response was received on seven (7) of these parcels, all requesting that the parcels 

remain in the Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District.  It is the recommendation of the 

Planning & Community Development Department that the Board of Supervisors renew the 

Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District for an additional ten year period. No parcels were 

requested to be withdrawn. The Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District consists of 555.69 

acres. 

 

The Adams Creek District consists of the following property owners, tax map parcel numbers 

and parcel acreages: 

 

OWNER’S NAME 
TAX MAP  

PARCEL # ACREAGE 

RECEIVED 

FORM 

Carter, Bruce Et Al 46 (3) 1 24.993 x 

Carter, Bruce T. 46 (3) 3 34.575 x 

Carter, Bruce T. 46 (A) 1A 36.000 x 

Adams Creek Land Trust 46 (A) 14 342.130 x 

Carter, Walter H. Jr. & Judith G. 46 (A) 14A 24.570 x 

Carter, Bruce T. 46 (A) 8 20.470 x 

Carter, Bruce Et Al 46 (A) 8D .205 x 

Schumaker, Glenn Walker 46 (A) 8F 1.492  

Schumaker, Glenn Walker 46 (A) 9 71.250  

 Total  555.69  

 

DISCUSSION:  The 2009 Comprehensive Plan designates this area of Fluvanna County as Rural 

Preservation. 

 



Please be advised that Section 15.2-4311 (State Code) titled Review of Districts, states in part 

that “the local governing body may complete a review of any district created under this section.  

If the local governing body determines that a review is necessary, it shall ask for the 

recommendations of the local advisory committee and the planning commission in order to 

determine whether to terminate, modify or continue the district.” 

 

It further states “if the local governing body determines that a review is unnecessary, it shall set 

the year in which the next review shall occur.”  This is interpreted to mean that the Board of 

Supervisors has the authority to discuss the disposition and renew the qualifying districts without 

the recommendation of the advisory committee and the planning commission; however, if the 

Board feels that a review is necessary, the normal process, inclusive of a public hearing shall be 

required. 

 

In accordance with Section 15.2-4311 of the State Code of Virginia, the Fluvanna County 

Planning & Community Development Department has contacted the current property owners of 

parcels identified in the above referenced Agricultural/Forestal district and advised them that the 

approved district will expire on May 16, 2011. This letter also advised the property owners that if 

the Planning & Community Development Department did not receive a response, then it would 

be determined that the property owner desired their property to remain in the existing district.  

Based on this notification and response by the property owners, Staff’s recommendation 

regarding the disposition of this existing district is to renew the district for an additional 10 year 

period. 

 

Staff: Matt Weaver, Planner 

 

Copy: Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

Attachments:    

A. Resolution renewing AFD for an additional 10 year period 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF FLUVANNA 

RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Fluvanna held in the 
Fluvanna County Courts Building at 2:00 p.m. on the 6th day of April 2011, at which the following 
members were present, the following resolution was adopted by a majority of all members of the 
Board of Supervisors, the vote being recorded in the minutes of the meeting as shown below: 

 

 
PRESENT VOTE 
John Gooch, Chairman ...................................................................................................................  
Shaun Kenney, Vice-Chairman. .....................................................................................................  
Mozell Booker ..................................................................................................................................  
Donald Weaver ................................................................................................................................  
Joe Chesser ........................................................................................................................................  
Chris Fairchild. .................................................................................................................................  

 

 
On the motion of ___________, seconded by ________________, which carried by a vote 

of ______ the following resolution was adopted: 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE RENEWAL OF THE ADAMS CREEK 
AGRICULTURAL/FORESTAL DISTRICT FOR AN ADDITIONAL TEN-YEAR 

PERIOD TO EXPIRE MAY 16, 2021 
 

WHEREAS, the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors approved the creation of the 
Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District on May 16, 2001 for a ten year period; and 
 

WHEREAS, the district is set to expire on May 16, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 15.2-4311 of the State Code of Virginia, the 

Fluvanna County Planning & Community Development Department contacted the current property 
owners of parcels identified in the Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal District and advised them 
that the approved district would expire on May 16, 2011 and inquired whether the owners desired 
that the property remain in or be removed from the district. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on this 6th day of April 2011 that the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors hereby renews the Adams Creek Agricultural/Forestal 
District for an additional ten-year period to expire on May 16, 2021 

 
 

______________________________ 
Mary Weaver, Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 

Fluvanna County, Virginia 













































































































































MOTION:   I move to approve the proclamation proclaiming the month of April 2011 as 

Celebrating Children Month in Fluvanna County in observation of Child Abuse Prevention Month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

****************************** 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

Comments:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



 

PROCLAMATION 

 

By virtue of the authority vested in us, we hereby proclaim the month 

of April as CELEBRATING CHILDREN MONTH in FLUVANNA 

COUNTY in observation of CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION 

MONTH. 

 

WHEREAS, every child in our great county is a precious gift, full of 

promises and potential; and 

 

WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect is a serious problem in Virginia 

and across the nation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the prevention of child abuse is crucial to the preservation 

of the health and well-being of Fluvanna’s families and can be 

accomplished by providing support and information to families as well 

as through increased community awareness; and 

 

WHEREAS, all children learn from role models at home, at church, at 

school, and in their communities and all children benefit from the love 

and leadership displayed by caring and responsible adults, and 

 

WHEREAS, children are our most precious resource and we are 

committed to keeping the children of our community safe and happy; 

and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE WE, THE FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD 

OF SUPERVISORS, do hereby recognize APRIL 2011 as 

CELEBRATING CHILDREN MONTH in observation of CHILD 

ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH in FLUVANNA COUNTY and 

we call this observance to the attention of all our citizens. 

  

 Signed and sealed this 6
th
 day of April, 2011 

 

 

_______________________   

John Y. Gooch 

Chair, County of Fluvanna Board of Supervisors 



MOTION:   I move to approve the resolution entitled “National Crime Victims’ Rights Week 

proclaiming the week of April 10-16, 2011 as Crime Victims’ Rights Week and reaffirm the 

County’s commitment to respect and enforce victims’ rights and address their needs during Crime 

Victims’ Rights Week and through the year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

****************************** 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

Comments:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



RESOLUTION 

National Crime Victims’ Rights Week 

 
 

 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on 

Wednesday, April 6, 2011, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following resolution was adopted on a 

motion by ____________, seconded by ____________, and voted in the affirmative: 

  

 WHEREAS, over 20 million Americans are victims of crime each year, suffering 

emotional, physical, psychological and financial toll as they have lost loved ones, life savings, 

physical and mental health, and often their sense of security that has the potential to irrevocably 

change the course of their lives forever; 

 

 WHEREAS, more than 30 years of progress for crime victims stands on the shoulders of 

dedicated advocates and brave victims who overcame shame, isolation, and indifference to gain a 

voice, rights, and respect; 

  

 WHEREAS, while victim assistance programs across the country are reaching more 

victims, public understanding of victims’ rights remains minimal, and our nation’s victim 

services system remains fragmented, underfunded, and uncoordinated; 

 

 WHEREAS, history teaches us that, by working together, we can help victims of crime 

reshape their destinies and ensure that they receive the support they need, the respect they 

deserve, and the rights they have earned; 

 

 WHEREAS, National Crime Victims’ Rights Week, April 10-16, 2011, provides an 

opportunity for us to reshape the future for victims by honoring the past and reflecting on hard-

won victories, and to recommit to working together to insist on better treatment for victims to 

help them overcome the harm caused by crime; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Fluvanna Victim/Witness Assistance Program is joining forces with 

victim service programs, criminal justice officials, and concerned citizens throughout Fluvanna 

County and the Commonwealth of Virginia to raise awareness of victims’ rights and observe 

National Crime Victims’ Rights Week; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors does hereby proclaim the week of April 10-16, 2011 as Crime Victims’ Rights Week 

and reaffirm our commitment to respect and enforce victims’ rights and address their needs 

during National Crime Victims’ Rights Week and throughout the year; and, 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board expresses its appreciation for those 

victims and crime survivors who have turned personal tragedy into a motivating force to improve 

our response to victims of crime and build a more just community. 

 

 

________________________________   ______________________ 

John Y. Gooch, Chairman      Date    

Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 



MOTION:   I move to approve the proclamation proclaiming the week of April 10-16, 2011, as 

"National Telecommunicator's Week" and honor the men and women whose diligence and 

professionalism keep our county and citizens safe. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

****************************** 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

Comments:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Proclaiming 
 

National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week 
 

April 10 – 16, 2011 
 

By the Board of Supervisors, Fluvanna County Virginia 
 

WHEREAS, emergencies can occur at anytime requiring sheriff, police, 
fire or emergency medical services; and 

WHEREAS, when an emergency occurs the prompt response of law 
enforcement, firefighters and emergency medical technicians is critical to 
the protection of life and preservation of property; and 

WHEREAS, the safety of our deputy sheriffs, police officers, firefighters, 
and emergency medical technicians is dependent upon the quality and 
accuracy of information obtained from citizens who telephone the 
Fluvanna County Sheriff's Office Emergency Communications Center; 
and 

WHEREAS, public safety dispatchers are the first and most critical 
contact our citizens have with emergency services; and 

WHEREAS, public safety dispatchers are the single vital link for our law 
enforcement, fire and EMS personnel by monitoring their activities by 
radio, providing them information and ensuring their safety; and  

WHEREAS, our public safety dispatcher personnel daily serve the public 
in countless ways,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors 
of the County of Fluvanna hereby proclaims the week of April 10-16, 
2011, as "National Telecommunicator's Week" and joins in honoring the 
men and women whose diligence and professionalism keep our county 
and citizens safe. 

Signed this 6th day of April, 2011 

 
 

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 
Palmyra District 

 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice Chair 
Columbia  District 

 

Donald W. Weaver 
Cunningham District 

 

Mozell H. Booker 
Fork Union  District 

 

Joseph C. Chesser 

Rivanna District 

 
Chris Fairchild 

Rivanna  District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 STAFF 

 
Jay Scudder 

County Administrator 

jscudder@co.fluvanna.va.us 
 

 

Mary L. Weaver 
Clerk to the Board 

mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us 

 
  

 

 

 

P.O. Box 540 

Palmyra, VA 22963 
 

 (434) 591-1910 

 FAX (434) 591-1911 

www.co.fluvanna.va.us 
“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  

mailto:mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us












MOTION: I move to approve the schematic design drawings (with the discussed 
modifications) for the Fork Union Firehouse and authorize the Architect, DJG, Inc, of 
Williamsburg, Virginia to proceed with the Design Development Phase of the Project that 
is budgeted for $76,217. 
 
AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS           April 6, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Review and Approval of Fork Union Firehouse Schematic Design 
 
ISSUE: Review and approval of the Schematic Design of the Fork Union 
Firehouse and authorize the Architect to proceed to the next phase of the project, which is 
the Design Development. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The Fork Union Firehouse Building Committee 
recommends approval of the schematic design and the commencement of the Design 
Development Phase. 
 
TIMING: Routine 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: The project budget is $1,760,000 and includes grant funds 
totaling $1.4 million along with local cash totaling $360,000.  The architect has been 
tasked to develop a design that will stay in budget.   
 
The approval to proceed to the Design Development Phase of this project will obligate 
the County to pay the Architect for the next phase of the design, which is approximately 
$76,217.  This will be in addition to the Schematic Design work that has already been 
completed for the amount of $25,405.   This will be paid from the Capital Improvements 
Account budgeted for the Firehouse Construction. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: None. 
 
DISCUSSION: The Board of Supervisors assigned a building committee to 
oversee the design and construction of the proposed Fork Union Firehouse.  The 
Committee consists of Mozell Booker, Shaun Kenney, Marvin Moss along with members 
of the Fork Union Fire Company, County Staff and the County Fire Chief, Mike Brent. 
 
The building committee’s objectives were as follows: 1) develop a plan for the building 
that meets the needs for today and provides for future expansion;  2) provide a 
multipurpose meeting room that can be used by the fire company and other County 
organizations; 3) provide a bunk room and associated support rooms such as showers for 
overnight staffing in the fire house; 4) provide emergency power generator for the 
building; and, 5) develop a visual pleasing façade that is in character with the Fork Union 
Community Center. 
 
The building committee met on March 23, 2011 to review and develop the conceptual 
elevations and floor plans for the proposed building.  The floor plan has gone through 



Agenda – Review and Approval of Fork Union Firehouse Schematic Design 
April 6, 2011 
 
 
several changes from the beginning of the process to arrive at the current design.  Both 
the elevation of the building along with the floor plan and site plan are attached. 
 
As a reminder, the design process for this building will follow the same general process 
that the Courts Building, the Public Safety Building, the Palmyra Firehouse and the 
Library Building followed: 
 
Phase 1 - Conceptual or Schematic Design – the floor plan, elevations and site plan are 
developed. 
Phase 2 – Design Development – the detailed design is completed for the project with the 
specifications and an initial cost estimate. 
Phase 3 – Construction Documents – the detailed bidding documents, plans, contract, and 
specifications are finalized in this phase. 
Phase 4 – Bidding – this phase includes review of the bids and a negotiation with the low 
bidder if necessary. 
Phase 5 – Construction Administration – this includes the oversight of the construction 
including pay requests, change orders, and resolution of problems during the 
construction. 
 
As in the past projects, each phase of the design will be submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors for approval to proceed to the next phase of design or construction.  
Therefore, the Board of Supervisors in approving the Design Development is only 
committing to complete this phase at this time.  Any changes that the Board of 
Supervisors would like to see should be presented as early in the project as possible so 
that the changes can be made without a significant amount of plan modification. 
     
Staff: John Robins, Director of Public Works 
 
Attachments: Rendering of Firehouse 
  Floor Plan 
  Site Plan 

Elevation of Proposed Firehouse 
 
   
******************************* 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 
   Page 2 
 











 

 

MOTION: I move to appoint _____________________ to the Economic 

Development Commission, Rivanna position, with a term to begin immediately and to 

terminate on December 31
st
 2013. 

 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  April 6
th

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Appointment to Economic Development Commission (EDC) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Current term expires December 31
st
 2013 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  Mr. Fairchild was appointed to the Board of Supervisors. 

 

Applicants who have shown an interest in this appointment are:   

 Debra Kurre and Shelley Murphy 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Enclosure:  Boards and Commissions Applications 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



FY12 Budget

Public Hearing

April 6, 2011



2

Presentation Agenda

1. Public Hearing: 
Capital Improvements Plan

2. Public Hearing: 
Real Estate Tax Rate Increase

3. Public Hearing:

Personal Property Tax Rate Increase

4. Public Hearing: 
Personal Property Administrative Fee Increase

5. Public Hearing:
County Budget



Capital Improvements Plan 

(CIP)



FY2012 CIP

Project

Cash 

(Use of FB) Borrowing Grant Other Total 

E911 Radio System $ 3,500,000 $ 3,500,000 

Fire Truck $475,000 $ 475,000 

Ambulance $100,000 $100,000 

Sheriff Patrol Vehicles $220,000 $ 220,000 

School Bus $ 80,000 $ 80,000

3 Vehicles – Bldg 

Inspections, Planning and 

Facilities $38,000 $ 38,000

Administration Bldg 

HVAC $375,000 $ 375,000

Rt. 15 & 53 Roundabout $ 285,000 $ 530,000 $ 285,000 $1,100,000

Total: $  4,598,000 $     475,000 $     530,000 $   285,000 $  5,888,000



FY2013 CIP
Project Cash Borrowing Grant Other Total 

PG Restroom & Concession (plumbing) $38,500 $3,000 $  41,500

PG Playground Expansion $85,000 $85,000

PG Amphitheater $42,366 $15,000 $57,366

Facilities Vehicle $25,000 $25,000

Carysbrook Auditorium HVAC $25,000 $25,000

Carysbrook Roof Restoration $70,000 $70,000

MACAA Roof Replacement $45,000 $45,000

Historic Courthouse $30,000 $30,000

Facilities Repair Reserve $50,000 $50,000

Convenience Ctr – Equipment $133,000 $133,000

Zion Crossroads Water $100,000 $100,000

Zion Crossroads Sewer $100,000 $100,000

F&R – Ambulance Replacement $150,000 $150,000

Sheriff Patrol Vehicles $295,000 $295,000

School Buses (4) $320,000 $320,000

FUSD Water Supply Improvements $50,000 $50,000

Total: $1,263,866 $295,000 $15,000 $3,000 $1,576,866

2011 Penny Equivalent 3.64

- -



FY2014 CIP

Project Cash Borrowing Grant Other Total 

Athletic Field Lighting $321,000 $ 321,000

Facilities Vehicle $20,000 $20,000

Facilities Repair Reserve $50,000 $50,000

Convenience Ctr $25,000 $25,000

Zion Crossroads Water $800,000 $800,000

Zion Crossroads Sewer $400,000 $400,000

Ambulance Rechassis $100,000 $100,000

Sheriff Patrol Vehicles $305,000 $305,000

School Buses $320,000 $320,000

FUSD Water supply Improvement $160,000 $160,000

Total: $996,000 $1,505,000 $2,501,000

2011 Penny Equivalent 2.8 - - -



FY2015 CIP
Project Cash Borrowing Grant Other Total 

PG Field Construction $237,136 $133,578 $45,421 $416,135

Outdoor Pool $510,000 $100,000 $610,000

Outdoor Pool Building $158,400 $158,400

AG Expo Barn $100,000 $150,000 $50,000 $300,000

Facilities Repair Reserve $50,000 $50,000

Facilities Vehicle $20,000 $20,000

Convenience Center $25,000 $25,000

Zion Crossroads Water $3,600,000 $3,600,000

Zion Crossroads Sewer $4,050,000 $4,050,000

Ambulance Replacement $150,000 $150,000

E911 Phone Equip Replace $150,000 $150,000 $300,000

Sheriff Patrol Vehicles $246,000 $246,000

School Buses (4) $320,000 $320,000

FUSD Water Supply Improvement $540,000 $540,000

Total: $1,966,536 $8,190,000 $433,578 $195,421 $10,785,535 

2011 Penny Equivalent 5.67 - - -



FY2016 CIP

Project Cash Borrowing Grant Other Total 

PG Intergenerational Center $2,625,000 $2,625,000

Facilities Repair Reserve $50,000 $50,000

Zion Crossroads Water $4,100,000 $4,100,000

Zion Crossroads Sewer $2,050,000 $2,050,000

Ambulance Rechassis $100,000 $100,000

Sheriff Patrol Vehicles $300,000 $300,000

School Buses $320,000 $320,000

Sewer Expansion $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Total: $ 1,470,000 $ 9,075,000 $0 $0 $10,545,000

2011 Penny Equivalent 4.24 - - -



Total Capital Improvement Plan 

FY2012 - FY2016

Capital Fund Utility Fund

FY2012 $ 5,888,000

FY2013 $1,576,866

FY2014 $2,501,000

FY2015 $10,785,535

FY2016 $9,545,000 $1,000,000

TOTAL: $30,296,401 $ 1,000,000

2011 Penny 

Equivalent 16.3¢ for cash projects



10

FY12-16 Proposed CIP 

Revenue

Cash

10,294,402

33%

Loans

19,540,000

62%

Grants

978,578

3%

Donations/Other

483,421

2%

Loans Cash Donations/Other Grants



11

Capital Improvements Plan

Public Hearing



Real Estate

Tax Increase



13

Real Property Tax Rate Increase

Proposed FY12 budget raises the real 

property tax rate from 54¢ to 57¢ per $100 

of assessed value for a total of $1,039,920 

in additional revenue. (95% CR)

Yearly

Home value 54¢  Rate 57¢  Rate Incr.

$ 100,000 $    540 $    570 $   30

$ 150,000 $    810 $    855 $   45

$ 250,000 $ 1,350 $ 1,425 $   75

$ 350,000 $ 1,890 $ 1,995 $ 105



14

RE Penny Equivalent

Real Property Tax

@ 95% Collection 

Rate

= $346,640

(100% = $360,040)



Tax Rate Comparison
COUNTY/CITY FY10 FY11 FY12* Assessment Schedule

Albemarle 0.742 0.742 0.742 Every other year

Buckingham 0.44 0.44 0.44 Option of BOS

Charlottesville 0.95 0.95 0.95 Annual

Cumberland 0.59 0.70 0.68 Option of BOS

Fluvanna 0.50 0.54 0.57 Option of BOS; Prior in 2007

Goochland 0.53 0.53 0.53 Every two years

Greene 0.69 0.69 0.69 Next reassessment begins 7/1/11

Louisa 0.62 0.62 0.62 Annual

Nelson 0.55 0.55 0.55 n/a

*These are proposed rates that have NOT been adopted by their 

respective counties.



Fluvanna

Real Estate Tax Rate History

Year Rate
2000 0.64

2001 0.68

2002 0.71

2003* 0.64

2004 0.68

2005* 0.50

2006 0.59

2007* 0.43

2008 0.48

2009 0.48

2010 0.50

2011 0.54

*Effective year of reassessment



17

Real Property 

tax increase

Public Hearing



Personal Property

Tax Increase



19

Personal Property Tax Rate Increase

Proposed FY12 budget raises the 

personal property tax rate from 

$3.85 to $4.15 per $100

of assessed value for a total of 

$496,860 in additional revenue. 

(91% CR)



20

PP Nickel Equivalent

PP Tax

@ 91% Collection Rate

= $82,810

(100% = $91,000)



21

Impact on Taxpayer

Tax Rate Property Value

PPTRA Eligible $10,000 $20,000 $30,000

$3.85
(Total -55% PPTRA)

$173

($385 - $212)

$346

($770 – $424)

$520

($1,155-$635)

$4.15
(Total -53% PPTRA)

$195

($415 – $220)

$390

($830 - $440) 

$585

($1,245-$660)

Total Increase $22 $44 $65

Increase for those not 

eligible for PPTRA
$30 $60 $90

PPTRA – Personal Property Tax Relief Act or otherwise referred to as the ‘no 

car tax’ legislation.



PP Tax Rate Comparison

COUNTY/CITY FY11 FY12*

Albemarle 4.28 4.28

Buckingham 4.05 4.05

Charlottesville 4.20 4.20

Cumberland 4.50 4.50

Goochland 4.00 4.00

Greene 5.00 5.00

Louisa 1.90 1.90

Nelson 2.95 2.95

*Not all of these rates have been adopted by their respective counties.



Personal Property 

Administrative Fee 

Increase



24

Administrative Fee Structure

Current

Proposed 

Increase

Motorcycles $6.00 $18.00

All Other 

Motor 

Vehicles
$20.00 $33.00

Total Revenue $427,242 $726,000



25

Personal Property 

Administrative Fee 

Increase

Public Hearing



County Budget

Expenditures



27

Advertised Operating Expenses

Adopted

Budget FY11 

Proposed

Budget FY12 

Increase/

(Decrease) 

%

Change

General Government $             1,978,313 $             2,299,508 321,195 16.2

Judicial Administration $                966,240 $                958,398 (7,842) -0.8%

Public Safety $             4,507,049 $             4,719,558 212,509 4.7%

Public Works $             1,467,315 $             1,567,765 100,450 6.8%

Health and Welfare $             4,759,446 $             4,769,194 9,748 0.2%

Education $           34,469,046 $           34,608,126 139,080 0.4%

Parks & Recreation and 

Library $                602,283 $                634,942 32,659 5.4%

Community Development $                448,838 $                387,096 (61,742) -13.8%

Non-departmental $             1,063,920 $             1,498,831 434,911 40.9%

Debt Service $             7,746,574 $             7,832,820 86,246 1.1%

TOTAL $           58,009,024 $           59,276,238 $ 1,267,214 2.2%



28

Advertised Operating Expenses

Recreation

& Cultural

1.8%
Public Works

2.6%

Debt Service

13.2%

Government 

Administration

3.9%

Public Safety

8.0%

Health &

Welfare

9%

Judicial 

Administration

1.6%

Non-

Departmental

1.7%

Community 

Development

0.7%

Education

58.4%



29

Significant Increases

1. $606k Debt Service for New HS

2. $250k Reassessment

3. $142k Information Technology 
Upgrades

4. $122k Lake F&R Ambulance 
Rechassis and Water Rescue Vehicle

5. $89k Central Virginia Regional Jail

6. $46k Line of Duty Act



30

Significant Decreases

1. $144k - Eliminated 3 FT Positions –

Asst CA; CSA Admin Support; P&R 

Athletic Coordinator and 1 PT position 

in Treasurer’s office

(All of these positions are vacant or will be 

vacant in the near future.)

2. $73k - Postponed filling Economic 

Development Coordinator



31

Advertised Local Funding for 
Education

Year

Local 

Funding % Change 

Total 

Budget % Change 

FY12 13,700,000 0.00 34,608,126 0.4%

FY11 13,700,000 -8.6% 34,469,046 -10.1%

FY10 15,000,000 -2.0% 38,373,155 -2.2%

FY09 15,312,827 5.1% 39,216,350 7.9%

FY08 14,572,340 7.5% 36,343,976 6.2%

FY07 13,550,012 3.6% 34,224,320 10.6%

FY06 13,076,906 6.3% 30,956,006 10.6%

FY05 12,304,105 3.8% 28,000,000 7.1%

FY04 11,854,001 8.0% 26,152,339 8.3%

FY03 10,973,757 11.4% 24,157,221 7.6%

FY02 9,848,849 10.0% 22,445,348 8.0%

Avg. increase 

FY02-12:
4.51% 5.88%



32

Advertised Enterprise Funds

Adopted

Budget FY11 

Proposed

Budget FY12 

Increase/

(Decrease) 

%

Change

REVENUES

Fork Union Sanitary District $         416,283 $       393,000 (23,283) -5.6%

Utility Fund $         162,741 $         38,400        (124,341) -76.4%

School Food Service $      1,734,994 $    1,734,994 - 0.0%

TOTAL ENTERPRISE

REVENUES $        2,314,018 $      2,166,394 (147,624) -6.3%

Fork Union Sanitary District $         416,283 $       427,111 10,826 2.6%

Utility Fund $         213,303 $       256,624        43,321 20.3%

School Food Service $      1,734,994 $    1,734,994 - 0.0%

TOTAL ENTERPRISE

EXPENDITURES $     2,364,580 $    2,418,729     54,147 2.2%

Note: Utility Fund is supplemented with General Fund dollars.



33

FY12 Allocation by Fund

Enterprise 

Funds

3%

General 

Operating

37%

School Fund

51%

Capital Fund

9%



County Budget

Revenues



35

Advertised Operational Revenue

• Property Tax values and collection rates decreased

• Budget Based on:
– 57¢ RE Tax Rate; 95% Collection Rate

– $4.15 PP Tax Rate; 91% Collection Rate

GOVERNMENTAL 

REVENUES

Adopted

Budget FY11 

Proposed

Budget FY12 

Increase/

(Decrease) 

%

Change

Local $ 27,116,663 $ 29,616,054 2,499,391 9.2%

State $ 24,872,280 $ 24,532,675 (339,605) -1.4%

Federal $  3,308,962 $   3,779,844 470,882 14.2%

Use of High School 

Debt Reserve $  2,761,681 $   1,600,000 (1,161,681) -42.1%

SUBTOTAL 

GOVERNMENTAL 

REVENUES $58,059,586 $ 59,528,573 1,468,987 2.5%



36

Advertised Operating Revenues

Local

50%

State

41%

HS Debt 

Reserve 

Savings

3%Federal

6%



37

Advertised Local Revenue Sources

Recovered Costs, 

$120,000

Community 

Programs, $35,000 

Permits/Fees/

Licenses, 

$332,294

General Property 

Taxes, 

$23,801,883

Court Fines & 

Forfeitures, 

$30,914

Other Local, 

$3,251,500

Use of 

Money/Property, 

$38,700

Charges for 

Services,$155,575

Miscellaneous, 

$30,000



38

Public Hearing 

on the 

FY12 County Budget.



39

April 20, 2011 

Circuit Courtroom 

7:00 p.m.

FY12 Budget Adoption



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Board of Supervisors  

FROM: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst  

SUBJECT: Contingency Balance 

DATE: March 22, 2011 

 

The balances for the BOS and grant contingency lines for FY11 are as follows: 

 

Board of Supervisors contingency:   $100,000.00 

   Minus JRWA legal services 7.21.10 mtg.  -     4,479.87 

   Minus Animal Control vehicle 9.15.10 mtg. -   11,500.00 

   Minus Texting Module for E911 9.15.10 mtg. -     5,000.00 

   Minus Convenience Ctr 10.20.10 mtg.  -   13,191.00 

   Minus JRWA legal fees 10.20.10 mtg.  -     2,313.24 

   Minus iPads for BOS 3.2.11 mtg.   -   10,200.00 

   Minus 5 year forecast 3.16.11 mtg.   -   15,000.00 

      $  38,315.89 

 

Grant contingency:      $ 0 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  

“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, VA 22963  · (434) 591-1910  ·  FAX (434) 591-1911  · www.co.fluvanna.va.us 


	February 23, 2011 Minutes
	March 9, 2011 Work Session Minutes
	March 16, 2011 Minutes
	VA Dept of Health for FY 11 Appropriations
	FY 11 Library Supplement
	Payment to JRWA for Legal Services
	AFD Renewal -  Adams Creek 
	Accounts Payable
	Proclamation - Celebraing Children's Month
	National Crime Victims' Rights Week 
	Proclamation National Telecommunicators Week
	Audit Services Contract
	Fork Union Firehouse
	Appointment EDC - Rivanna District
	FY12 Budget Public Hearing
	Contingency Memo



